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INTRODUCTION 

The Appellant was the defendant in the trial court below. 

The Appellee, the State of Florida was the prosecution. In this 

brief, the Appellant will be identified as the "Defendant." 

Appellee will be identified as the "State." The symbol "T" will 

be used to designate the transcript of the lower court 

proceedings. The symbol " R "  will be used to designate the record 

on appeal. The symbol "ST" will be used to desginate the 

Defendant's Supplemental transcript of the lower court 

proceedings. The symbol "SR" will be used to designate the 

Defendant's Supplemental record on appeal. The symbol "SSR" will 

be used to designate the State's Supplemental record on appeal. 

The symbol "p" will be used to designate a page of the 

@ Defendant s brief. All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise 

indicated. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 
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The State's rendition of the Case will be addressed as it 

relates to Defendant's issues on appeal. 



STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

I. GUILT PHASE 

Detective Merrit was the lead homicide investigator. 

(ST.216-217). On June 16, 1982 at approximately 11:OO a.m., 

Detective Merrit came in contact with Defendant in the Terrant 

County (Forth Worth/Dallas area in Texas) Jail interview room. 

(ST.221-222). Detective Merrit advised Defendant why he was 

present and of the charges pending against him, and read him his 

Miranda rights from a card. (ST.222-224). After being read his 

rights, Defendant advised Detective Merrit he had contacted 

counsel. (ST.224). Detective Merrit indicated he would talk to 

him later and began to leave. (ST.224-225). Defendant then 

stated he would talk to him. (ST.224-225). 

Defendant's first account of his activities the day of 

Joyce's murder, was that he was in Fort Lauderdale in a lounge, 

the name of which he didn't know. (ST.225-226). It was a 

topless place, and he did alot of drinking while he was there. 

(ST.226). The next day he brought a ticket for a bus heading to 

Memphis, Tennessee. (ST.226). Initially, he had indicated to 

Detective Merrit that he had rented a room in Oklahoma City, and 

after he provided his first version of events, he executed a 

Texan consent to search form. (R.299-300; T.225-226). 

After the consent to search form had been executed by the 

Defendant, he provided his second version of his activities on 

the day of the murder. (ST.226-229). He stated he had been in a * 
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"titty bar" with nude dancers in Fort Lauderdale. (ST.229). He 

smoked Malboro cigarettes and drank Budweiser between 4 : O O  and 

6:OO. (511.229). The barmaid was a short, stocky lady that 

looked like an Indian. (ST.229). There were all topless dancers 

in the lounge, who kept coming by all the time looking for tips. 

(ST.229). He brought them several drinks, and gave heavy tip 

money while he was there. (ST.229). 

0 

He spoke to one female who was about nineteen (19) years 

old. (ST.229). He told her he wasn't from Florida, but from up 

north and that he was looking for work. (ST.229-30). She 

related that she hadn't eaten. (ST.230). He told her he would 

take her to dinner and a movie. (ST.230). The young girl had 

long brown hair, but he couldn't remember her name. (ST.230). 

He drove her in a 1961 Chevy dual wheel pickup, brown in color 

with Tri-State Motors, Joslin, Missouri on the side. (ST.230). 
0 

They drove south to a truck stop and brought two six-packs. 

(ST.230). The girl told him she was from Georgia and really 

needed money. (ST.230). They drove around for a while and ended 

up at a lake in Opa Locka. (ST.230). He didn't know what he was 

driving through, got stuck in the sand, and they stayed there 

drinking a few beers. (ST.230). 

Eventually, the girl said she wanted to go swimming. 

(ST.230). She went down to the water, took off all her 

clothing. (ST.230). She wanted him to go swimming too, so he 

went into the water wearing cutoff blue jeans and a t-shirt. 0 
-3- 



(ST.230). It was deep water, and she started ducking [sic] him 

in the water. (ST.230-31). He started ducking [sic] her back, 

even though she couldn't swim too well. (ST.231). He grabbed 

her by the shoulders, and apparently held her under too long, 

because she stopped moving. (ST.231). He then realized she was 

dead. (ST.231). 

0 

He dragged Joyce out of the water, pushed her up on the 

bank, and attempted to push the water out of her by pressing on 

her chest. (ST.231). He didn't have sex with her, because he 

couldn't when he had been drinking. (ST.231). 

He went back up to the truck, and attempted two or three 

times to get it unstuck. (ST.231). Eventually, some people came 

by and they drove him to a gas station. (ST.231). He went to 

retrieve the truck with a wrecker, but it was unable to pull it 

out of the sand. (ST.231). A guy returned with a four-wheel 

drive vehicle, with blue metal flake paint, and charged him 

$20.00 for pulling him out of the sand. (ST.231). 

(I) 

He drove his truck down the road, when the battery went 

dead. (ST.231). A male police officer drove up behind him and 

set up flares. (ST.231). Thirty minutes later, a police woman 

in a blue uniform arrived with another wrecker. (ST.231-232). 

His vehicle was towed to an Amoco gas station, that was located 

behind a 7-11 type store open 24 hours. (ST.232). He signed the 

work order for the vehicle to be repaired. (ST.232). 

e 
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The deceased he said was a beautiful person and he 

panicked. (ST.232). He called a cab, went to the Trailways Bus 

Station, and caught a bus to Orlando. (ST.232). He then caught 

a bus from Orlando to Memphis, Tennessee. (ST.232). Between 

0 

Orlando and Memphis he actually considered turning himself in, 

that he woke up during the night thinking about it. (ST.232). 

The next day, in Memphis, he caught a ride with a truck driver 

to Little Rock Arkansas. (ST.232). He finally ended up in 

Oklahoma City, where he got a room. (ST.232). At this point he 

provided Detective Merrit with the address of his room in 

Oklahoma City. (ST.232). He went on to Fort Worth, Texas, and 

subsequently was arrested. (ST.232). 

Detective Raymond Sharp, of the Fort Worth, Texas Police 

Department, testified prior to Detective Merrit. (T.1529-1549). 

He witnessed Detective Merrit reading Defendant his Miranda 

rights. (T.1540). He also heard Defendant's second account of 

Joyce's alleged demise: 

A. I heard Mr. Gilliam tell Detective Merrit that 
he and the girl were swimming in the lake and he 
ducked her under too long and apparently held her 
under too long and that when he pulled her out of 
the water, he attempted to perform CPR but was 
unsuccessful. 

(T.1545). 

Interestingly, when he arrived at the Lake Worth Police 

Department after Defendant's arrest, he found Defendant "lying 

on his back in the back parking lot of the police department." 

(T.1538). Detective Sharp walked up to Defendant "and said he 

might want to get up, there was a tarantula crawling towards 0 
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him." (T.1538). Defendant got up and walked into the Lake Worth 

0 Police Department. (T.1538). Defendant had no difficulty moving 

in any fashion or talking. (T.1539). 

Detective Joseph Poe, was working for the Dallas Police 

Department in 1969, when Defendant committed statutory rape upon 

15 year old Vida Lester. (T.2425-26). His testimony refuted the 

impression conveyed by Defendant, when he took the stand, that 

he had consensual sex with Vida. (T.1919-20, 1940-42, 2425-28). 

When Detective Poe accompanied Vida to the back lot where she 

was raped, he observed: "She had some bruise marks on her neck 

and she had a black eye." (T.2427-28). 

Any additional facts relating to the Guilt Phase shall be 

0 related as they pertain to Defendant's issues on appeal. 

-6- 



11. PENALTY PHASE 

The trial court's findings in reaching its decision that 

the death penalty is the appropriate sentence in this case were 

as follows: 

The Court has considered all the evidence and 
arguments which have been presented in this case in 
reaching its decision that the death penalty is the 
appropriate sentence in this case. 

In support of this determination, the Court makes 
the following findings of fact consistent with 
section 921.141 paragraph five. 

A: The defendant was previously convicted of a 
felony involving the use or threat of violence to 
the person; in that he was convicted of rape in 1969 
in the state of Texas. Case number C69-1521-LK. 

B: The capital felony was committed while the 
defendant was engaged in the commission of a sexual 
battery, specifically, he penetrated the anus of the 
victim prior to her death with his sexual organ or 
an object. 

C: The capital felony was especially heinous and 
cruel. The victim, Joyce Marlow, was tortured by 
the defendant. The evidence establishes that she 
was annally raped prior to her death in a manner 
which, in effect, tore her apart. The tremendous 
pain and suffering incurred by virtue of this was 
attested to by Doctor Valerie Rao, forensic 
pathologist, and common understanding. In addition, 
the defendant inflicted multiple bite wounds on the 
victim while she was alive, one of which nearly 
severed the nipple of her breast. The pain and 
suffering inflicted by these wounds was extreme. 
The defendant also injured the head of the victim 
and finally caused her demise by strangulation, 
which permitted realization by the victim of her 
impending death. 

In reaching the conclusion that the murder of Joyce 
Marlow was especially, heinous, atrocious and cruel, 
this Court has considered the testimony of Doctor 
Ronald Reeves, a defense witness. The Court finds 
that the testimony of Doctor Reeves is deserving of 
very little weight and does not place into doubt the 
testimony of Doctor Valerie Rao which supports the 
Court's finding. 
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The Court finds that these three aggravating 
circumstances have been proven beyond a reasonable 
doubt. The evidence does not support a finding of 
any of the other aggravating circumstances. 

As to mitigating circumstances, the Court finds that 
none of the statutory mitigating circumstances have 
been sufficiently proven. 

As to non-statutory mitigating circumstances, the 
Court makes the following findings: 

A: The defendant was brought up in a broken 
home and was subjected to physical abuse. 

B: The defendant's current wife, his mother 
and other family members love him and desire 
that his life be spared. 

The Court specifically rejects as mitigation the 
defendant's assertion that he is a non-violent 
person and a loving parent to his son. To the 
contrary, the Court is convinced that the defendant 
is an extremely violent person and that his son has 
been a victim of his violence. 

The court has considered but rejects all other 
alleged mitigating circumstances. 

In conclusion, the Court finds that there are 
sufficient aggravating circumstances to impose the 
death penalty, as the aggravating circumstances 
outweigh the mitigating circumstances. Accordingly, 
the crime in this case warrants and justifies the 
imposition of the death penalty. 

It is hereby the Order and Judgment of this Court 
that defendant, Burley Gilliam, be, and is hereby 
sentenced to death. 

(T.2996-98). 

Any additonal facts relating to the Penalty Phase shall be 

related as they pertain to Defendant's issues on appeal. 
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POINTS ON APPEAL 

I. 

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN 
DENYING THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO RECUSE? 

A. Whether the Motion was Untimely? 

B. Whether the Motion was Leqally Insufficient? 

C. Whether the Trial Court s Comment on the Truth 
of the Alleqation Reqardinq an Improper Ex 
Parte Communication which Came Lonq After It 
Ruled that the Alleqations in the Motion, Even 
if True, Were Legally Insufficient, was Mere 
Surplusaqe, which in any Event was the Product 
of Deliberate and Repeated Goadinq by Defense 
Counsel? 

11. 

WHETHER THE DEFENDANT ESTABLISHED A PRIMA FACIE CASE 
OF EXPOSURE TO A JUROR OF A POTENTIALLY PREJUDICIAL 
NEWSPAPER ARTICLE, WHERE THE LETTER WRITTEN BY THE 
JUROR TO THE TRIAL COURT CAME AFTER SHE HAD RENDERED 
HER VERDICT OF GUILT, HER ADVISORY RECOMMENDATION AS 
TO THE DEATH PENALTY, AND BEEN DISMISSED FROM THIS 
CAUSE AS A JUROR AND SHE DID NOT LEARN OF THE 
ARTICLES EXISTENCE COMPOSING HER LETTER? 

111. 

WHETHER THE APPLICATION OF FLORIDA'S CAPITAL 
SENTENCING STATUTE WAS CORRECT BASED UPON THE FACTS 
OF THIS CASE? 

A. Whether the Trial Court Properly Found the 
Aqgravatinq Circumstance of Heinous, Atrocious 
or Cruel? 

B. Whether the Trial Court's Sentencing Order 
Imposinq the Death Penalty Reflects Reasoned 
Judqment ? 

C. Whether the Trial Court Correctly Exercised 
its Discretion in Allowinq into Evidence a 
Certified Copy of a Texas Incident Report and 
a Letter from Defendant's Former Wife, to 
Rebut His Assertions that He was a Nonviolent_ 
Person and a Loving Parent, in Compilation 
with g921.141(1) Florida Statutes? 
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IV. 

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN 
IMPOSING A CONSECUTIVE SENTENCE OF LIFE FOR 
DEFENDANT'S SEXUAL BATTERY CONVICTION, WHERE THE 
RECORD FROM DEFENDANT'S FIRST TRIAL DEMONSTRATES 
THAT IT FELT IT HAD TO IMPOSE A CONCURRENT SENTENCE? 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

I. 

The trial court correctly exercised its discretion in 

denying the Defendant's motion to recuse. 

A. 

The motion, coming on the sixth day of trial, the third day 

after the jurors had been sworn, was untimely. Defendant's co- 

counsel alleged in their supporting affidavits that the trial 

court's demeanor, as early as voir dire, demonstrated prejudice 

against them thereby rendering them ineffective. 

B. 

The motion was legally insufficient. First, one of the 

allegations, as to an ex parte communication between the trial 

court and the State is unequivocably refuted by the record. 

Second, the affidavits were not properly sworn to. Finally, all 

other allegations were legally insufficient based on cited 

authorities. In short, the affidavits do not demonstrate a 

well-grounded fear on the part of the defendant that he was not 

receiving a fair trial at the hands of the presiding judge. 

0 

C. 

The trial court commented on an allegation that the record 

clearly demonstrates was false. Given the untimeliness of the 

motion, and the legal insufficiency of its supporting 

affidavits; the trial judge's remarking that a false allegation 

is false raises the invited error doctrine. 0 
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11. 

The Defendant failed to establish a prima facie case of 

exposure to a juror of a potentially prejudicial newspaper 

article. By Defendant's own rendition of the facts, the letter 

written by the juror to the trial court, demonstrates that she 

was not exposed to the article until after she had been 

dismissed as a juror. The motion for order to conduct post- 

trial interviews was not accompanied, by any affidavits. The 

motion itself exhibits no personal knowledge of juror 

misconduct, but mere speculation as to whether the juror in 

question was influenced by the article. 

111. 

The application of Florida's capital sentencing statute was 

correct based upon the facts of this case. 

A. 

The trial court properly found the aggravating circumstance 

of heinous, atrocious or cruel based upon the authorities cited, 

and the facts proven by the State as to the victim's demise. 

B. 

The trial court's sentencing order reflects the reasoned 

judgment required in imposing the death sentence. It found 

three aggravating circumstances, no statutory mitigating 

circumstances, and two nonstatutory mitigating circumstances. 

It concluded that the three aggravating circumstances outweighed 0 
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the two nonstatutory mitigating circumstances. Its conclusions 

of fact are clothed with a presumption of correctness. Beyond 0 
that, the jury recommended the death penalty by a vote of 10 to 

2 .  

C. 

The trial court correctly exercised its wide discretion in 

matters of evidence, by allowing into evidence a certified copy 

of a Texas Incident Report relating Defendant's treatment of his 

former wife and his son, and a letter from his former wife, to 

rebut his assertions during the sentencing phase of his trial, 

that he was a nonviolent person and a loving parent. 

IV. 

The consecutive life sentence imposed on Defendant for his 

sexual battery conviction was not a retaliatory measure for his 

being given a second trial. The standard enunciated by the 

United States Supreme Court was satisfied. 

e 
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ARGUMENT 

I. 

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY EXERCISED ITS DISCRETION 
IN DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO RECUSE. 

The procedural requirements of, and policy behind, Rule 

3.230 F.R.Crim.P. have been ennunciated by this Court as 

follows: 

When a party believes he cannot obtain a fair and 
impartial trial before the assigned trial judge, he 
must present the issue of disqualification to the 
court in accordance with the process designed to 
resolve this sensitive issue. The requirements set 
forth in section 38.10, Florida Statutes (1981), 
Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.230, and 
Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.432 were 
established to ensure public confidence in the 
integrity of the judicial system as well as to 
prevent the disqualification process from being 
abused for the purposes of judqe-shoppinq, delay, or 
some other reason not related to providing for the 
fairness and impartiality of the procceedinq. The 
same basic requirements are contained in each of 
these three processes. First, there must be a 
verified statement of the specific facts which 
indicate a bias or prejudice requiring 
disqualification. Second, the application must be 
timely made. Third, the judge with respect to whom 
the motion is made may only determine whether the 
motion is legally sufficient and is not allowed to 
pass on the truth of the allegations. Sections 
38.10 and Florida Rule of Ciminal Procedure 3.230 
also require two affidavits stating that the party 
making the motion for disqualification will not be 
able to receive a fair trial before the judge with 
respect to whom the motion is made, as well as a 
certificate of good faith signed by counsel for the 
party making the motion. 

Section 38.10 requires that these affidavits be from 
persons unrelated to the parties or counsel. No 
affidavits are required under Florida rule of Civil 
Procedure 1.432. 
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A. The Motion was Untimely. 

Defendant filed his motion to recuse the Honorable Theodore 

G. Mastos on June 13, 1989, technically the sixth (6th) day of 

trial. Defendant in his brief correctly states that "it was 

filed on the morning of the third day after the jurors had been 

sworn." (pp.12-13). He then reiterates paragraph 3 of his 

Motion to Recuse as grounds for his failure to file in 

comportion with Rule 3.230(c) F.R.Crim.P.: 

3 .  As good cause for the failure to so file within 
such time the defendant submits that the acts 
manifesting bias and prejudice against the defendant 
occurred at the commencement of the trial. 

(R.338; pp.12-13). 

Yet, the supporting affidavits of Defendant's co-counsel, 

Edward M. Koch and Kenneth L. Marvin, in and of themselves 

demonstrate the untimeliness of the motion. In paragraph 7 of 

Mr. Koch's affidavit, the demeanor of the trial court, during 

voir dire, is discussed. (R.340-341). Similarly, Mr. Marvin 

discussed the demeanor of the trial court during voir dire, in 

paragraph 4 of his affidavit. (R.343). Mr. Koch also placed in 

issue, the trial court's demeanor during the examination of 

Officer Dorothy Ballard, in paragraph 8, which transpired early 

on June 9, 1988, the fourth day of trial. (R.341; T.1192). 

e 

Another factor which demonstrates the untimeliness of the 

motion to recuse, is that none of the supporting affidavits to 

the motion contained the requisite certificate of good faith 

Q 
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signed by Defendant's co-counsel. (R. 340-346; SR. 37-40). 

Livingston v. State, 441 So.2d 1083 (Fla. 1983). When the 

motion was first raised, the State argued that this rendered the 

motion legally insufficeint. (T.1595-1596, 1602). It proffered 

that this could perhaps be remedied by having the affiants swear 

under oath in open court as to the allegations raised. (T.1602). 

This Defendant's co-counsel failed to do. When the motion was 

revisited a second time (the next morning) the State again 

suggested the affiants be placed under oath so that the 

affidavits might properly be sworn to. (T.1768). Again, co- 

counsel for the defense declined to so swear. (T.1769). It was 

only after the State had rested, and the motion to recuse was 

raised a third time, that the affiants swore under oath that the 

allegations were true and correct. (T.1801-1803). 

This Court has addressed the timeliness of a motion to 

recuse accordingly: 

Appellant contends that the trial judge erred in 
refusing to disqualify himself from participation in 
the sentencing phase of the trial. Appellant filed 
his motion, based on the judge having previously 
sentenced him to death, at the beginning of the 
sentencing hearing, after the judge had presided 
over the guilt phase of the trial. 

Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.230(c) 
provides: "A motion to disqualify a judge shall be 
filed no less than 10 days before the time the case 
is called for trial unless good cause is shown for 
failure to so file within such time. 'I Appellant's 
motion was untimely since no good cause was shown 
for not having filed it ten days before the trial. 

The State would refer this Court to paragraph 4 of the Motion 
to Recuse which states: "This motion is filed in good faith." 0 (R.338; SR.37). 
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Sentencing in capital felony cases is based on facts 
established at the quilt phase of the trial as well 
as those brouqht out at the sentencinq p hase. 
§921.141(3), Fla.Stat. (1977). It is therefore 
hiqhly desirable that the same judqe preside over 
both. The sentencinq judqe should be aware of all 
the relevant facts and circumstances. A motion to 
disqualify a judge on the ground of prejudice that 
may affect sentencinq should be filed before 
commencement of the quilt phase of the trial so that 
a new judge, if one is to be desiqnated, may preside 
over the trial from start to finish and participate 
in sentencinq. Since the motion in this case was 
not based on anything that happened during the 
trial, there was no reason for it not to have been 
filed ten days before the trial began. Moreover, 
appellant's motion merely stated conclusions and 
therefore lacked legal sufficiency. We therefore 
hold that the denial of the motion was not error. 

Jones v. State, 411 So.2d 165, 167 (Fla. 
1982); - -  cert. den. 103 S.Ct. 189. 

Generally, a party waives any grounds for disqualification 

of a judge or justice, when the suggestion is not filed within a 

reasonable period of time after havinq knowledge of such 

grounds. Schwartz v. Schwartz, 431 So.2d 716 (Fla. 36 DCA 

1983). A motion to disqualify a judge should be denied for 

untimeliness only when its allowance will delay the orderly 

progress of the case, or it is being used as a disruptive 

tactic. Deren v. Williams, 521 So.2d 150 (Fla. 5th DCA 1988). 

It is obvious from their affidavits, that Mr. Koch and Mr. 

Marvin had misgivings about the trial court as early as voir 

dire. (R.340-346; SR.37-40; T.1593). Yet, they waited until the 

State had proceeded through more than two days of its case-in- 

chief to file Defendant's motion to recuse. (R.340-346; SR.37- 

40; T.1593). They did not swear as to the allegations contained 
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in the affidavits until the next day, after the State had rested 

0 its case-in-chief. (T.1798, 1801-1803). Interestingly, the 

motion came after the testimony of Detective Merrit, the lead 

homicide investigator, who related the most damaging evidence 

against Defendant to that point in the trial, his own 

confession. (ST.229-232). He confessed to Detective Merrit, 

with specificity, the chronology of events before and after the 

victim's gruesome demise. (ST.229-232). As to her death, he 

related that was a consequence of accidentally ducking the 

victim until she drowned. (ST.229-232). 

If defense co-counsel were truly concerned as to the 

Defendant receiving a fair trial, good cause for the 

untimeliness of their motin could have been demonstrated by 

filing a proper motion with supporting affidavits, containing a 

certificate of good faith of at least one of Defendant's 

counsel, prior to the State's commencing its case. That way, 

another trial judge could have been assigned to try the case, 

wihtout unduly delaying the orderly progress of the case. Jones 

v. State, supra; Deren v. Williams, supra. 

e 

Instead, they waited until the State had elicited testimony 

for more than two days. (T.1162-1593; ST.229-271). The State 

submits that the policy behind the issue of a motion to recuse 

filed in the middle of trial, should be the same as that 

exhibited for motions for mistrial. As this Court established, 

the requirements set forth in Rule 3.230 F.R.Crim.P.: a 
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. . . were established to ensure public confidence in 
the integrity of the judicial system as well as to 
prevent the disqualification process from being 
abused for the purposes of judge-shopping, delay, or 
some other reason not related to providing for the 
fairness and impartiality of the proceeding. 

Livinqston v. State, supra, at 1086. 

The defense, in any criminal proceeding, as a matter of 

policy, should not be allowed to assume a position of: "Let's 

wait and see how things go with the State's case, and then we'll 

decide whether to file our motion for recusal . 'I That appears, 

from the record, to be exactly the posture assumed by the 

defense in the instant cause. The State submits that the motion 

to recuse was a disruptive tactic, geared to invite error for 

appellate review and to delay the orderly progress of the trial, 

and as such was untimely. Livinqston v. State, supra; Jones v. 

State, supra; Deren v. Williams, supra. "In other words, 

'gotcha!' maneuvers will not be permitted to succeed in 

criminal, any more than in civil litigation." State v. Belien, 

379 So.2d 446, 447 (Fla. 3d DCA 1980). 

B. The Motion was Legally Insufficient. 

The following allegation made by Mr. Marvin, in paragraph 3 

of his affidavit, is clearly refuted by the record: 

Subsequently, after an ex parte meeting with an 
Assistant State Attorney and a representative of the 
Attorney General's office the Judge came back into 
the courtroom, changed his prior ruling and allowed 
the defense to recall Mr. Sherrie. 

(R.342-343; T.1373-1421). 
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Such an ex parte meeting could not have occurred prior to the 

trial court's reversal of its earlier ruling pertaining to 

refreshing witness Sherrie's recollection, because the record 

demonstrates the trial judge never left the bench. (T.1373- 

1421). 

0 

After Mr. Sherrie completed his testimony, the State 

resumed its case with Witness Frank Norwich.2 (T. 1373-1421). 

Once Mr. Norwich had completed his testimony, the issue of 

refreshing Mr. Sherrie's recollection was revisited in open 

court with all parties present. (T.1373-1421). Argument focused 

on the defense's desire to declare Mr. Sherrie adverse, thereby 

allowing him to be impeached with prior statements. (T.1373- 

1421). He was voir dired outside the presence of the jury, the 

tiral court heard further argument, and then reversed its prior 

ruling as to refreshing his recollection. (T.1373-1421). 

Without leaving the bench, the trial court reversed itself in 

open court with all parties present. (T.1373-1421). 

As previously delineated, when the motion to recuse was 

first raised, the State argued that it was untimely and legally 

insufficient in that the supporting affidavits were not properly 

sworn to. (1595-1596). A motion to disqualify a trial judge has 

been held to be legally insufficient, because there was no 

certificate of counsel that the motion was made in good faith, 

so that it was technically deficient, and because the facts set 

Mr. Sherrie was called out of turn as a witness for the 2 
defense. (T.1373-1421). 
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out in the motion and affidavits were insufficient to establish 

prejudice on the part of the judge against the defendant. 0 
Dempsey v. State, 415 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1st DCA 1982); _ _ _ -  See also 

Heiney v. State, 447 So.2d 210 (Fla. 1984); - -  cert. den. 105 S.Ct. 

303. 

This Court has delineated the proper test of the 

sufficiency of an affidavit for disqualification of a trial 

judge for prejudice: 

Tafero also feels that the trial judge, an ex- 
highway patrolman, should have recused himself. He 
urges that the test for recusal is the accused's 
fear of unfairness, not whether the judge is 
actually capable of conducting a fair trial. The 
test of the sufficiency of an affidavit for 
disqualification for prejudice is whether or not the 
sworn statement shows that the movant has a well- 
qrounded fear of not receivinq a fair trial at the 
hands of the presidinq judqe. State ex rel. Brown u. 
Dewell, 131 Fla. 566, 179 So. 695 (1938). The facts 
and reasons given in the sworn affidavit must tend 
to show personal bias or prejudice. This rule is 
not intended as a vehicle to oust a judge who has 
made adverse pretrial rulings. Suarez u. State, 95 
Fla. 42, 115 So. 519 (1928). 

Tafero v. State, 403 So.2d 355, 361 (Fla. 
1981); - -  cert. den. 102 S.Ct. 1492 

A review of the affidavits themselves, demonstrates that 

they fail the test of sufficiency. (R.340-346; SR.37-40; T.1798, 

1801-1803). Finally, the following authorities demonstrate that 

the remainder of the allegations were insufficient as well. 

The fact that a judge has shown anger or displeasure toward 

either the defendant or his counsel, has been held to be 

insufficient grounds to demonstrate a trial judge's personal 
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bias or prejudice. Dempsey v. State, supra; Stanley 

Communications Inc. v. Powell d/b/a Powell's Dozer Service, 526 

So.2d 1034 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988). Adverse judicial rulings are 

@ 

not a basis for disqualification of a judge for bias or 

prejudice. Payton Health Care v. Estate of Campbell, 497 So.2d 

1233 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986); Claughton v. Clauqhton, 425 So.2d 1073 

(Fla. 3d DCA 1984). A judge is not required to abstain from 

forming mental impressions and opinions during the course of 

presentation of evidence. Mobil v. Trask, 463 So.2d 389, 391 

(Fla. 1st DCA 1985). Under Florida law, bare allegations of 

bias are insufficient for judicial disqualification. Schultz v. 

Wainwriqht, 701 F.2d 900 (11th Cir. 1983). 

Based upon these authorities, the affidavits were legally 

insufficient. They fail to demonstrate that the Defendant had a 

"well-grounded fear of not receiving a fair trial at the hands 

of the presiding judge. I' Tafero v. State, supra. As to 

Defendant's affidavit, the final paragraph reads as follows: "I 

do not think I am getting a fair trial. The Judge was better in 

my first trial." (R.345-346). Interestingly enough, the trial 

Judge in his first trial in this State, for murder in the first 

degree, was the Honorable Theodore Mastos. Gilliam v. State, 

514 So.2d 1098 (Fla. 1987). 

0 
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C .  The Trial Court's Comment on the Truth of an 
Allegation, Regarding an Improper Ex Parte 
Communication, Came Lonq After It Ruled that 
the Allegations in the Motion, Even if True, 
Were Legally Insufficient, and Hence It's 
Comment was Mere Surplusage, which in any Event 
was the Product of Deliberate and Repeated 
Goading by Defense Counsel. 

Initially, when the motion to recuse was first raised, and 

the trial court entertained argument from opposing counsel, it 

simply denied the motion. (T.1604). However, the motion was 

revisited a second time, the next day, June 14, 1988, 

technically the seventh (7th) day of trial. (T.1754-1778). 

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Koch, the Court, you know, has 
had an opportunity to reread the motion and the 
affidavits, and what is particularly distressing to 
the Court is that many many of the things said here 
are simply not true. 

There is nothing in that record that would indicate 
that this Court has -- 
(Discussion off the record not related to this case) 

THE COURT: Many of the statements made in here are, 
in my opinion, false. But the problems that the 
Court has is that the rules say that the Court is 
not allowed to comment and the Court hasn't 
commented, you know, point for point. 

The issue is whether these affidavits, on their 
face, put the Court in a position of having no 
choice but to step aside, and that is why I am 
attempting to look into this. Because the Court has 
never had a vested interest either way. The Court's 
job is to try the case and to try it fairly and 
allow a jury to render a decision. 

(T.1760-1761). 

Mr. Koch then addressed the lower tribunal, and it responded as 

follows: 

THE COURT: I understand. 
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So many of these allegations are purely evidentiary 
questions that the Court made rulings on. This 
Court gave you the opportunities to argue sidebar, 
to supplement the record, and, again, even -- you 
know, again, I have a great number of questions 
about those allegations. And I think any trial 
judge would. 

But that is not really the question. I am not here 
to debate these allegations. I am here to try to 
reassess the situation, and the case law seems clear 
that the trial judge is not allowed to go behind 
those allegations. 

(T.1763-1764). 

Argument continued, which was concluded by the trial court as 

follows: 

THE COURT: All right, again, the Court in trying to 
apply the law was relying on 794.022 Rules of 
Evidence, which does deal with that question. 

All right, the Court has ruled. 

The trial will continue. 

The Court is satisfied that the affidavits are 
insufficient. And this Court has been presented 
with a motion for mistrial based upon everything 
thus far, and this Court at this time will deny the 
motion for mistrial and order the trial to resume. 

(T.1778). 

The motion to recuse was revisited a third time, after the 

State had rested. (T.1801-1815). Mr. Koch argued that Defendant 

was "being denied effective assistance of counsel." (T.1809). 

This third sojourn into the motion to recluse was concluded by 

the trial court as follows: 

THE COURT: All right. 

Starting from the top, the first thing, of course, 
Mr. Koch renewed was the motion to recuse. 
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Obviously, if the motion was well taken, the Court 
would have to recuse itself and couldn't proceed to 
go any further. 

However, this Court is of the opinion that the 
swearing, waiting until after the State has rested, 
to attach the language that the facts are true and 
correct and to swear before this Court is in fact 
untimely. 

Therefore, the affidavits continue to be legally 
insufficient under the Rule 3.230. 

(T.1814-1815). 

After the jury had retired to deliberate, the defense 

renewed numerous motions it had made during the trial, including 

the motion to recuse. (T.2461). This was the fourth time it had 

been addressed. The transcript reflects the following: 

THE COURT: Well, the record will reflect in the 
event of a conviction, and the appeal record for the 
Supreme Court, if the Supreme Court is willing to 
read this transcript from word one to the final 
word, I am confident that they will say that this 
judge labored under a most difficult case, that he 
labored under some of the most bitter, bitter 
animosity that has ever existed between two trial 
lawyers in this building existed. 

I believe they will conclude that the motion for 
recusal was a sham. I think they will conclude, as 
this Court did, that it was not legally sufficient 
at the time it was filed. 

There is a great deal of difference between an 
affidavit that contains statements from a transcript 
and innuendos from the motion of a hand or a look or 
a frown. 

Those affidavits, in the opinion of this Court, and 
I believe the Supreme Court would find the same way, 
were legally insufficient. 

Furthermore, the parties did not swear to the 
affidavits until after the State rested. If they 
were untimely in the beginning, not comporting with 
the rule, ten days before the time the case is 
called for trial, that is the appropriate time to 
recuse a judge, unless good cause is shown, I submit 
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that those what purported to be affidavits in no way 
stated a good cause and the fact that they waited 
until after the State rested to renew their motion 
for recusal and at that time the so-called five 
affiants then came forward and said the facts are 
true and correct, I find that to be untimely. And 
the Court will continue to deny the motion for 
recusal. 

MR. MENDELSON: 
comments as to 

When I argued 
that point in 
true. 

In retrospect, 

Judge, could I make a couple of 
the motion to recuse. 

the motion to recuse, I conceded at 
time that they must be accepted as 

Judge, I would rely upon motions to 
recuse in identical situations which are filed 
before trial. 

I am not sure that is correct. I believe the State 
will research that question further and I believe on 
appeal you might find cases to say nunc pro tunc -- 
THE COURT: Again, I urge, I urge all the members of 
the Supreme Court, in the event of a conviction 
here, that they read this transcript from start to 
finish, read those affidavits, what purport to be 
affidavits, and let an Appellate Court draw their 
own conclusion. 

For us to sit here and argue about it will 
accomplish nothing. 

MFt. MENDELSON: Judge, one other point on the motion 
to recuse, and it is on a personal note, I made 
mention about perjury regarding that. 

Believe me, it is not the State's wish to charge any 
attorney with perjury or to investigate that. And I 
implore Mr. Marvin -- y ou have made the statement 
that there was as ex parte meetinq with the judge 
before his honor chanqed his rulinq on Jeff Sherrie. 
Now the transcript will reveal that is not true. 
Likewise, the transcript has been ordered. Nobody 
wants to investigate any perjury in this case and I 
would just ask the honorable thins be done at this 
point. 

- That is not true. The conversation with Mr. Novick 
- occurred well after your Honor had already changed 
his rulinq, it is in black and white. 

A repudiation of that statement after this case is 
over will not have the regarded effect on the 
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Florida Supreme Court, and it is demonstrably not 
true and all I'm asking Mr. Marvin and Mr. Koch is 
to do- the honorable thina. 
I'm not contesting anything else. Those could be 
subject to different opinions. But the statement on 
an ex parte meetinq prior to Your Honor changinq his 
ruling reqarding Mr. Sherrie, that is demonstrably 
untrue. 

THE COURT: The record should reflect the following: 
That the Court did have a conversation with Mr. 
Novick, who is not an attorney connected with the 
trial of this case, and, frankly, it worked to the 
benefit of the defendant, that I did have that 
conversation -- 

MR. MENDELSON: Your Honor -- 
THE COURT: Because I came in, I reversed myself and 
I allowed this witness to be refreshed with this 
testimony. 

MR. MENDELSON: But your Honor, I point out your 
conversation with Mr. Novick occurred after Your 
Honor had already changed its ruling. 

If you recall -- 
THE COURT: I -- again, after two weeks of being 
beaten and battered in here I don't remember right 
now the exact sequence. But I am saying on this 
record that I had no ex parte conversation with 
anybody in this case. 

(T.2466-2470). 

The renewed motion for recusal was denied. (T.2470). 

The motion to recuse was raised for a fifth time in 

Defendant's motion for new trial. (T.2732-2740). Mr. Koch 

alleged I f .  . . the final comments by the Court that day was 
[sic] a direct attempt to refute the allegations contained in 

paragraph three of Mr. Marvin's affidavit." (T.2737). The State 

rejoindered with the following: 

0 
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MR. MENDELSON: Just very briefly. I really don't 
want to go into any detailed argument on the 
allegations in the affidavit, and this is my 
statement, Judge, just because my name is mentioned 
in the allegation, in the affidavit. The only 
allegation in the affidavit you made a ruling about 
at that time was, there was an ex parte meeting 
between the state attorney and the assistant 
attorney general, which has been abandoned, but the 
allegation -- at which point you Honor came back 
into the courtroom and changed its ruling. 
Obviously they alleged in their affidavit that this 
ex parte meeting occurred before your honor changed 
its ruling. I have consistently maintained and am 
maintaining today that it is absolutely true your 
honor changed your ruling before this conversation 
with Jay Novick, which occurred maybe six hours 
later which did not involve an assistant attorney 
general, involved Mr. Novick as your Honor stated on 
the record. 

(T.2738-2739). 

The trial court denied the motion for new trial, addressing 

the motion to recuse as follows: 

With regard to the motion to recuse, in the number 
of years I have had on the bench nothing has ever 
been quite as troubling as to have something like 
that filed six days into trial. You know, win, lose 
or draw at the end of these cases all we really have 
is our reputation as professionals. The ability to 
come in and do a job, that frankly is a tough one, 
and anybody who thinks that sitting on a first 
degree murder case where death is the possible 
sentence -- this is an awfully lonely seat and there 
aren't too many people that feel comfortable sitting 
in this seat in this type of a case. 

(T.2740). 

As the above record indicates, the trial court initially 

denied the motion without comment. When it was revisited a 

second tme, the trial court acknowledged that it should not 

delve into the truth of the specific allegations, and that 

"[tlhe issue is whether those affidavits, on their face, put the 
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Court in a position of having no choice but to step aside.. . . 
(T.1761). Further on the trial court stated: "...[T]he trial 

judge is not allowed to go behind those allegations." (T.1764). 

It concluded its discussion of the recusal motion by stating: 

"The Court is satisfied that the affidavits are insufficient . It 
(T.1778). 

The fourth time the motion was visited, the trial court in 

discussing the allegations stated: "there is a great deal of 

difference between an affidavit that contains statements from a 

transcript and innuendos from the motion of a hand or a look or 

a frown." (T.2466-2467). It then went on to hold that the 

affidavits were technically deficient as well. (T.2466-2467). 

The point here however, is that the trial court was well aware 

that its ruling should be based purely on the legal sufficiency 

of the allegations, not their truth, and that it issued its 

ruling accordingly. 

The comments of the trial court concerning the truth of the 

ex parte allegation, came only after repeated goading by defense 

counsel. Defense counsel repeatedly raised the recusal issue in 

a deliberate attempt to elicit from the trial court a comment on 

the merits of the allegation. Numerous cases have addressed 

this identical scenario. 

In Sanders v. Yawn, 519 So.2d 28, 29 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987), 

an action was brought for a writ of prohibition after the trial 

court had denied a recusal motion. The First District ruled as 0 
follows: 
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In finding petitioner's motion to recuse to be 
legally insufficient, respondent analyzed the 
meaning and construction of the objected to remarks 
and preliminary rulings made by him during a 
prehearing conference. Petitioner argues that in 
doing so,  respondent ruled on the truth of the 
allegations and refuted the charges of partiality. 
Therefore, according to Bundy u. Rudd, 366 So.2d 440 
(Fla. 1978), petitioner contends she is entitled to 
the writ regrdless of the legal sufficiency of her 
motion. 

However, we find the motion was facially 
insufficient to show a reasonable fear of bias, and 
respondent's discussion of the allegations though 
perhaps broader than was wise or necessary, did not 
dispute that the objectionable words and actions 
occurred. Instead, we construe the order denying 
the motion for recusal solely as a determination 
that those words and actions were not such as to 
cause a reasonable fear of bias or prejudice. See 
Mobil u. Trash, 463 So.2d 389 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985). 

Similarly, the Fourth District ruled accordingly: 

[Alppellant filed a motion for disqualification of 
Judge Tyson with supporting affidavits. The grounds 
for disqualification were that the affiants had a 
well grounded fear that Judge Tyson was prejudiced 
against appellant. The ground for the alleged fear 
of prejudice was that the judge was prejudiced 
against counsel for his failure to appear on the 
trial date and the judge's action in increasing 
appellant's bond based on evidence of appellant's 
threats against a State witness. The trial judge 
found the motion was legally insufficient and we 
agree. The record does not justify the alleged fear 
of prejudice expressed in the affidavits. Nor do we 
believe the trial judge overstepped his bounds in 
commenting on the motion and affidavits. It is 
axiomatic that a trial judge may not pass upon the 
truth of the facts alleged nor adjudicate the 
question of disqualification. Bundy u. Rudd, 366 
So.2d 440 (Fla. 1978) ; Management Corp. of America, Inc. 
u. Grossman, 396 So.2d 1169 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981). That 
rule was not violated here; the trial judge passed 
on the sufficiency of the motion for 
disqualification--he did not pass on its merits. 

Yesbick v. State, 408 So.2d 1083 (Fla. 4th 
DCA 1982). 
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Another opinion by the Fourth District renders the following 

ruling as to recusal, which is highly pertinent to this issue: 

Finally, as to recusal, Mr. Weinstein attempts to 
bootstrap by using his own wrongful contumacious 
conduct which was justifiably addressed by the trial 
court as a substantive basis for engineering a 
change in judges. This should not be countenanced. 

Cardinal v. Wendy's of South Florida, 529 
So.2d 335, 340 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988). 

It would be intellectually dishonest to attempt to refute 

that the trial court, after the fourth time the motion to recuse 

was raised, passed on the truth of Mr. Marvin's allegation as to 

the alleged ex parte communication. (T.2469-2470). However, as 

this Court has held: "A lawyer cannot disagree with the court 

and deliberately provoke an incident rendering the court 

disqualified to proceed further." State v. Himes, 36 So.2d 433, 

483-439 (Fla. 1948). In the instant cause, defense co-counsel 

did exactly that, repeatedly resurrecting the recusal motion in 

a deliberate and calculated effort to evoke comments on the 

merits of the allegation by the trial court. It cannot be 

stressed enought that the allegation concerning the ex parte 

communication is positively refuted by the record, and defense 

counsel should not be rewarded for submitting a false 

allegation, and then provoking the trial court into commenting 

thereon. 

As previously submitted by the State, the motion to recuse 

in the instant cause was clearly a disruptive tactic, the sole 

purpose of which was to create an issue on appeal. Id.; Fischer 
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v. Knuck, 497 So.2d 240 (Fla. 1986); State v. Himes, supra; 

Deren v. Williams, supra. The motion was a "gotcha! " maneuver, 

and as such clearly constitutes invited error. State v. Belein, 

supra. A defendant should not be allowed, midway through a 

trial, to utilize a motion to recuse as a device to manipulate 

the criminal justice system, thereby undermining public 

confidence in its integrity. Livinqston v. State, supra. 

It would be a travesty of justice to sanction such behavior 

as was exhibited in Defendant's motion to recuse. Is it error 

for a trial court, on a motion to recuse, submitted in the 

middle of trial, to comment on an allegation which the record 

demonstrates is clearly false, where it has already ruled that 

the allegation, even if true, is legally insufficient? The 

State submits that under these circumstances, that such comments 

should be viewed as mere surplusage. Should this Court 

disagree, the State further submits that when the motion to 

recuse is utilized as a disruptive tactic to create error, the 

trial judge's comment that a false allegation is false, is 

harmless error. State v. DiGuilo, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986). 

The evidence, including Defendant's own confession, was 

overwhelming that he heinously sexually assaulted and murdered 

Joyce Marlow. 
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11. 

THE DEFENDANT CLEARLY FAILED TO ESTABLISH A PRIMA 
FACIE CASE OF EXPOSURE TO A JUROR OF A POTENTIALLY 
PREJUDICIAL NEWSPAPER ARTICLE, WHERE THE LETTER 
WRITTEN BY THE JUROR TO THE TRIAL COURT CAME AFTER 
SHE HAD RENDERED HER VERDICT OF GUILT, HER ADVISORY 
RECOMMENDATION AS TO THE DEATH PENALTY, AND BEEN 
DISMISSED FROM THIS CAUSE AS A JUROR, AND SHE DID 
NOT LEARN OF THE ARTICLES EXISTENCE UNTIL AFTER 
COMPOSING HER LETTER. 

This Court has held: 

[Tlhe trial court's conclusions of fact come to us 
clothed with a presumption of correctness, and, in 
testing the accuracy of these conclusions, we must 
interpret the evidence and all reasonable deductions 
and inferences which may be drawn therefrom in the 
light most favorable to the trial judge's 
conclusions. (Citations omitted). 

Shapiro v. State, 390 So.2d 344, 346 (Fla. 1980). 
-- See also Smith v. Phillips, 455 U.S. 209, 102 S.Ct. 
940, 71 L.Ed.2d 78, 81 (1982). 

Although potentially harmful misconduct by a juror is 

presumptively p>e judicial, the Defendant has the initial burden 

of establishing a prima facie case that the conduct is 

potentially prejudicial. Amazon v. State, 487 So.2d 8 (Fla. 

1986). 

. . . [ I]t should be clearly understood that not all 
[misconduct] will vitiate a verdict, even though 
such conduct may be improper. It is necessary 
either to show that prejudice resulted or that the 
[misconduct was] of such character as to raise a 
presumption of prejudice. 

Id. at 11; citinq Russ v. State, 95 So.2d 
594 600-dbl (Fla. 1957). 

In Russ v. State, supra, this Court cited the following 

0 language from a prior Missouri case: 
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* * * We have no hesitancy in saying that, in 
order to warrant such course, [granting of motion 
for new trial] the affidavit should be full and 
explicit, indicating fully as to whether or not he 
was an eyewitness-that is, witnessed personally the 
misconduct-or, if not, as to the persons from whom 
he obtained the information, and further indicating 
at least some sort of a reason why he is unable to 
secure the affidavit of any other witnesses aside 
from himself to support his motion to a new trial. 

Id. at 599; State v. Page, 212 Mo. 224, 110 
S.W. 105';j-(1908). 

The District Court of Appeal of Florida, Fifth District, 

ruled accordingly, as to an individual seeking certiorari review 

of an order scheduling a post-trial interview of jurors: 

Petitioners seek certiorari review of an order 
scheduling a post-trial interview of jurors. 
Respondents motion to permit interview of jurors is 
not supported by affidavit, and the allegations are 
speculative, conclusory, or concern matters that 
inhere in the verdict itself. See Marks u. State Road 
Dept., 69 So.2d 771 (Fla. 1954); Clark u. Merritt, 480 
So.2d 649 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985); Kirkland u. Robbins, 385 
So.2d 694 (Fla. 5th DCA 1980), rev. den. 397 So.2d 779 
(Fla. 5th DCA 1981); National Indemnity Co. u. Andrews, 
354 So.2d 454 (Fla. 2d DCA 1978), cert .  den. 359 So.2d 
1210 (Fla. 1978); Brassell u. Brethauer, 305 So.2d 217 
(Fla. 4th DCA 1974). Unless there are sufficient 
allegations of juror misconduct relating to matters 
which are extrinsic to the verdict, inquiry into the 
deliberations of a jury is prohibited. This long- 
standing rule protects jurors who have performed 
their duty in a lawful manner from harassment, and 
protects the verdict itself from unfounded 
challenges which only hamper the efficient 
administration of justice. As respondents' motion 
to permit interview of jurors was legally 
insufficient, the trial court departed from the 
essential requirements of law in scheduling the 
interview. Therefore, we grant the petition, issue 
the writ, and quash the order scheduling a post- 
trial interview of jurors. 

Orange County v. Fuller, 502 So.2d 1364 
(Fla. 5th DCA 1987). 
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Finally, a hearsay affidavit made by counsel for defendant, 

(b which set forth alleged statements made by a juror and 

conclusions of what influenced jurors in arriving at their 

verdict, did not constitute a ground for new trial in a robbery 

prosecution. Branch v. State, 212 So.2d 29 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968). 

Defendant's own rendition of the chronology of events 

pertaining to Juror Terracall's letter, as put forth in his 

brief, demonstrates that he failed to make a prima facie case of 

prejudice: 

The motion set forth this chronology: the jury was 
sworn on June 8, 1988; the defendnt filed his motion 
to recuse on June 13; the Miami Herald published an 
article that date regarding the motion to recuse; 
the jury convicted the defendant on June 17 and, on 
June 20, recommended the death penalty for Burley 
Gilliam; and, on June 23, 1988 one of the jurors 
wrote a letter to the judge. The article and the 
juror's letter were attached to the motion. 

(SR; R. 425-428, p.18). 

He then adds that the letter, dated June 23, 1988, contained the 

following handwritten post-postscript: 

P.P.S. After this letter was typed I was given the 
Herald article chronicling Defense's complaints 
about you. A case of grasping at straws I would 
say. 

(R.229, 425-428, p.19). 

Despite the fact that the letter's post-postscript clearly 

demonstrates that Juror Terracall reviewed the Herald Article 

after she was dismissed as a juror, Defendant argues in his 

brief the following: 
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The contents of the letter-particularly the sentence 
in paragraph 1, "You maintained your equanimity in 
the face of anger and unwarranted criticism directed 
toward yourself"--reflect that either the letter was 
written in response to the article or the juror 
received information extrinsic to the facts 
introduced at trial. 

First, and foremost, the State submits that this allegation 

is purely speculative and conclusory. Oranqe County v. Fuller, 

supra. The same speculation is demonstrated in Defendant's 

motion to conduct post-trial interviews of jurors. (R.433-437). 

Second, there were no affidavits attached to the motion which 

demonstrate personal knowledge of misconduct by Juror Terracall, 

or any of the jurors for that matter. (R.433-437). Russ v. 

State, supra at 599. 

The Defendant's motion for an order authorizing defense 

counsel to conduct post-trial interviews was legally 

insufficient. It did not contain affidavits demonstrating 

personal knowledge of misconduct by Juror Terracall, or of any 

of the jurors. The allegations that "the letter was written in 

response to the article or the juror received information 

extrinsic to the facts introduced at trial," is purely 

speculative and conclusory. Finally, the letter itself 

demonstrates that Juror Terracall did not see the allegedly 

prejudicial article until after she had been dismissed as a 

juror. 
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As to Juror Terracall's commenting Judge Mastos maintained 

0 his "equanimity in the face of anger," the State would refer 

this Court to the following observation by the trial court: 

THE COURT: Well, the record will reflect in the 
event of a conviction, and the appeal record for the 
Supreme Court, if the Supreme Court is willing to 
read this transcript from word one to the final 
word, I am confident that they will say that this 
judge labored under a most difficult case, that he 
labored under some of the most bitter, bitter 
animosity that has ever existed between two trial 
lawyers in this building existed. 

(T.2466). 

This observation was made outside the jury's presence. (T.2440). 

Juror Terracall obviously observed the same animosity, but her 

personal observation of the manner in which the trial proceeded, 

made after she had been dismissed as a juror, is not sufficient * to support Defendant ' s speculation that she "received 

information extrinsic to the facts introduced at trial." The 

trial court's denial of post-trial interviews of the juror was 

correct, and comes to this Court clothed with a presumption of 

correctness. 
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111. 

THE APPLICATION OF FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING 
STATUTE WAS CORRECT BASED UPON THE FACTS OF THIS 
CASE. 

When one or more aggravating factors are properly found in 

a murder sentencing proceeding, death is presumed to be the 

proper sentence, unless it, or they, are overridden by one or 

more mitigating circumstances. Alford v. State, 307 So.2d 433 

(Fla. 1975), cert. &., 482 U.S. 912; Foster v. State, 369 

So.2d 928 (Fla. 1979) cert. den., 444 U.S. 885; White v. State, 
403 So.2d 331 (Fla. 1981) cert. den., 103 S.Ct. 3571. In the 

instant cause, the trial court found that the following three 

aggravating circumstances had been proven beyond a reasonable 

doubt: 

a. The defendant was previously convicted of a 
felony involving the use or threat of violence to 
the person; in that he was convicted of rape in the 
State of Texas. Case No. C69-1521-LK. 

b. The capital felony was committed while the 
defendant was engaged in the commission of a sexual 
battery, specifically, he penetrated the anus of the 
victim, prior to her death, with his sexual organ or 
an object. 

C. The capital felony was especially heinous, 
atrocious and cruel. The victim, Joyce Marlow, was 
tortured by the defendant. The evidence establishes 
that she was anally raped, prior to her death, in a 
manner which, in effect, tore her apart. The 
tremendous pain and suffering incurred by virtue of 
this was attested to by Dr. Valerie Rao, a forensic 
pathologist, and common understandinq. In addition, 
the defendant inflicted multiple bite wounds on the 
victim, while she was alive, one of which nearly 
severed the nipple of her breast. The pain and 
suffering inflicted by these wounds was extreme . 
The defendant also injured the head of the victim 
and finally caused her demise by strangulation, 
which permitted realization by the victim of her 
impending death. In reaching the conclusion that 
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the murder of Joyce Marlow was especially heinous, 
atrocious and cruel, this Court has considered the 
testimony of Dr. Ronald Reeves, a defense witness. 
The Court finds that the testimony of Dr. Reeves is 
deserving of very little weight and does not place 
into doubt the testimony of Dr. Valerie Rao which 
supports the Court's finding. 

(R.495-496). 

As to mitigating circumstances, it found that none of the 

statutory mitigating circumstances had been sufficiently proven. 

(R.496). It found the following two non-statutory mitigating 

circumstances: 

a. The defendant was brought up in a broken home 
and was subjected to physical abuse. 

b. The defendant's current wife, his Mother and 
other family members love him and desire that his 
life be spared. 

(R.496-497). 

It specifically rejected as mitigation, the Defendant's 

assertion that he is a nonviolent person, and a loving parent to 

his son. (R.497; T.2970), 2998). It considered, but rejected, 

all other alleged mitigating circumstances. (R.497). In 

conclusion, the trial court found that there were "sufficient 

aggravating circumstances to impose the death penalty, as the 

aggravating circumstances outweighred] the mitigating 

circumstances. (R.497). 

A. The Trial Court Properly Found the Aggravating 
Circumstance of Heinous, Atrocious, or Cruel. 

The meaning of the terms heinous, atrocious or cruel has 

been clearly delineated by this Court as follows: 
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1) 
Again, we feel that the meaning of such terms is a 
matter of common knowledge, so that an ordinary man 
would not have to quess at what was intended. It is 
our interpretation that heinous means extremely 
wicked or shockingly evil; that atrocious means 
outrageously wicked and vile; and, that cruel means 
designed to inflict a high degree of pain with utter 
indifference to, or even enjoyment of, the suffering 
of others. What is intended to be included are 
those capital crimes where the actual commission of 
the capital felony was accompanied by such 
additional acts as to set the crime apart from the 
norm of capital felonies--the conscienceless or 
pitiless crime which is unnecessarily tortuous to 
the victim. 

Alford v. State, supra at 444; See also, 
State v. Dixon, 283 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973) cert. den., 
416 U.S. 943; and Maqqard v. State, 399 So.2d 973 

-- 

(Fla. 1981) - cert. 2, den 454 U.S. 1059. 

The following facts demonstrate, as a matter of common 

knowledge, that the murder of Joyce Marlow was shockingly evil, 

outrageously wicked and vile, and designed to inflict a high 

degree of pain with utter indifference to, or even enjoyment of 

her suffering. 

In the late evening hours of June 8, 1989, Sandy Burroughs 

was fishing with a friend in the area known as Twin Lakes when: 

"We heard some screams sounded like a woman screaminq ... . ' I  

(T.1294). Although he testified that sometimes, while fishing, 

they would hear kids screaming, the screaminq they heard on this 

particular niqht sounded different than kids playinq. (T.1292- 

1294, 1300-01). 

Dr. Valerie Rao, Medical Examiner, examined the victim on 

the scene and performed the autopsy. (T.1610-1655). On the 
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scene, Dr. 

@ strangulat 

determined 

Rao's initial impression was that Joyce had died by 

on. (T.1618). After performing the autopsy, she 

the cause of death to be strangulation. (R.255, 267, 

269, 303; T.1628-1635, 1649, 1655). 

The victim's body contained numerous bruises beyond those 

which caused her death. (R.246-256, 266-271, 302-306; T.1619- 

1646). Bruises on her right shin, right upper arm above the 

elbow and to her left wrist were caused by her being grabbed. 

(T.1620-1624). 

Bruises near her left ear, on her chin and and on her left 

breast were caused by bites. (T.1627-1628). The bite on her 

left breast was so severe, that the left nipple was "almost torn 

off. " (T. 1628). The three bite mark areas demonstrated vital 

reaction which means Joyce had to survive at least four hours 

after the bites were inflicted if she had not been strangled to 

death. (T.1635-36). 

Joyce also exhibited injury "to her anal area ... the anal 
rectal area and the vagina." (T.1637). There was vital reaction 

in those areas. (T.1637, 1643-1646). The injury to her anus 

could have been "caused by any blunt object being forced into 

that area." (T.1645). 

Dr. Rao did not find the presence of trauma, fracture or 

injury to Joyce' skull, although she did have some injuries on 

her scalp. (T.1650-57). Nor did Dr. Rao find the presence of @ 
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injury or hemorrhaging on the brain. (T.1651-52). However, she 

could not determine whether Joyce was conscious or unconscious 

at the time the multiple injuries were inflicted on her. 

(T.1690). 

Dr. Richard Souviron, an expert in Forensic Odontology, 

testified that a determination can be made as to whether a 

victim was alive or dead at the time a bite was made. (T.1710- 

1720). The victim experienced three (3) bites as previously 

delineated. (T.1722-26). In order of severity, they were the 

bite near the left ear, the chin, and finally the severed left 

nipple. (T.1727). Scrape marks near the torn left nipple 

denoted that there was: 

... movement taking place at the time, there was a 
struggle, because it is not like this bite which 
shows no movement, this bite is just a clamping and 
grabbing type of a bite. Actually there was 
movement on the part, more than likely of the 
victim, again, showing that instead of just biting 
in hard, there is a scraping down as the bite was 
made. 

(T.1728). 

The victim was alive when the bite was inflicted near her 

left ear. (T.1736). The evidence of struggle, as to the left 

breast demonstrated that, in Dr. Souviron's opinion, the victim 

was moving at the time and would have been alive. (T.1743). 

Defendant administered the bites to the victim. (T.1783-84). 

Dr. Souviron couldn't determine whether Joyce was conscious or 

unconscious when she experienced this savage attack. (T.1793). 
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